
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
October 19, 2016 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Reverend Laura Viau of First Presbyterian Church of Apopka 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council Workshop August 23, 2016. 
2. City Council Budget Hearing September 14, 2016. 
3. City Council Budget Hearing September 28, 2016 
4. City Council meeting October 5, 2016 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Presentations: 

1. Apopka Fire Department, Firefighter Combat Challenge. Chief Carnesale 
 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of September, 2016. 
2. Award a contract for a reclaim water service main extension on Ocoee - Apopka Road. 
3. Award a construction contract to Rosenbauer America, LLC for a new Fire Engine. 
4. Award a construction contract to Rosenbauer America, LLC for an Advanced Life Support Rescue vehicle. 
5. Approve the ranking of firms and authorize the negotiation of a contract for a Construction Manager at Risk for Fire Station 5. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2519 – Second Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
2. Ordinance No. 2520 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative Kyle Wilkes 
3. Ordinance No. 2521 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial Kyle Wilkes  
4. Ordinance No. 2522 – Second Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial Rogers Beckett 
5. Ordinance No. 2523 – Second Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial Rogers Beckett 
6. Resolution 2016-32 – Accept a donation of right-of-way along Marden Rd. from the Central Florida Expressway. Glenn A. Irby 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Appointment of Director James Hitt to the MetroPlan Orlando Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). 

 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you letter from Wine for Us for the Water for People proclamation.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

1



  
 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

October 24, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

October 29, 2016 5:00pm – 9:00pm Halloween in the Park with Movie – Kit Land Nelson Park 

November 2, 2016     1:30pm –  Council Meeting 

November 3, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

November 8, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Council Meeting 

November 10, 2016  5:00pm – 10:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 11, 2016 5:00pm – 11:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 12, 2016 10:00am – 11:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 13, 2016  12:00pm – 8:00pm Fall Festival – Edwards Field 

November 16, 2016     7:00pm –  Council Meeting 

November 18, 2016 7:00pm – 9:00pm Movie in the Park [TBD] – Northwest Recreation Complex  

November 28, 2016 10:00am – 11:00am Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council Workshop August 23, 2016. 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 23, 2016, at 3:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Kyle Becker 

  Commissioner Doug Bankson 

  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

  Pam Barclay, Finance Director 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer called the Budget 

Workshop to order at 3:00 p.m. and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Fire Department: 

Chief Carnesale said he was here to discuss an addition to what they originally proposed during 

their original budget workshop presentation. They originally proposed twelve new firefighters 

for Station No. 5. He stated they have three 24-hour shifts, so at twelve firefighters, that only 

allows four per shift.  He said they would like to propose an additional six firefighters to allow 

for six firefighters per shift, bringing the total to eighteen firefighters. He stated they practice two 

in/two-out, which means there are two firefighters inside the building to fight the fire and two 

firefighters outside ready to perform a rescue of the two firefighters inside. He advised the two 

in/two out is now state law in Florida and this has also been adopted by OSHA. He discussed 

accidents, stating they are running more accidents on S.R. 441, 429, 414, and adding to that soon 

is Wekiva Parkway. Station 5 areas will have the largest residential homes of anywhere 

throughout the city. He played two videos depicting the importance of the two in/two out policy. 

He played a video that showed a response time of six minutes and thirty-six seconds. He 

explained that if this had been our Station No. 2, they would have taken longer to respond. 

Another video played showed a car fire in a garage.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker, Chief Carnesale stated it would be approximately $90,000 

for personnel and $30,000 for gear, totally $120,000. This covers FY 17 for a quarter of the year. 

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired if there were any projections with regards to impact fees 

covering any of this cost. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the Fire Impact Fee would be the source of funds and it has not been 

considered at this point.  

 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 23, 2016, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 5 

 

 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez, Chief Carnesale advised Station 2 responds to Rock 

Springs Ridge and it takes 6-7 minutes to the front side of Rock Springs Ridge and 8-9 minutes 

to the backside of Rock Springs Ridge.  

 

Council recessed the Budget Workshop at 3:34 p.m. for a Special Meeting. The Budget 

Workshop reconvened at 3:51 p.m. 

 

Fire Department continued: 

Discussion ensued regarding the addition of six firefighters and the required gear to the budget to 

include proposed impact fees. 

 

Mr. Irby advised that fire and police impact fees can be used for a joint use facility. He said the 

city has been behind with regards to impact fees.  He pointed out that governments can 

reimburse themselves for capital infrastructure and they may want to consider reimbursing the 

general fund from the proposed impact fees.  He further affirmed that there are certain positions 

in the budget, that if these positions are not allowed to be filled until after January 1, 2017, it will 

save $93,804. Six firefighters will cost $90,733. By adjusting the hiring of these individuals, it 

will pay for the firefighters for one quarter.  

 

Chief Carnesale said there is a SAFER grant application out requesting twelve firefighters from 

FEMA. The grants are usually awarded in September or October. He stated they have never 

received this in the past and there is no guarantee.  

 

It was the consensus to add in the requested additional six firefighters and push back the other 

hires to January 1, 2017.  

 

Recreation Update: 

Mr. Irby said an email was sent out to the commissioners and staff today regarding the lack of 

lacrosse fields. He stated Mr. Burgoon has an idea that he will be explaining.  

 

Mr. Burgoon said the AAC fields are in poor shape and stated they could re-sod the fields for 

approximately $40,000 to bring them back up to be able to have groups practicing there. He 

discussed the need for a person to mow and maintain the AAC, Alonzo Williams, and 

Grossenbacher. He said these were not going to be game fields, just practice fields. He stated 

with lacrosse they can shift their goal around on the field so they are not on the same spot 

constantly. He said the AAU football also practices there. This would be improving the two 

multipurpose fields.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the proposed update and improvement to the AAC fields.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said they could pull from various accounts in the FY 2016 budget to make the 

$40,000 to improve the fields. This will also create opportunities for other organized activities to 

utilize AAC for practices. The other issue is adding a person which is a permanent addition to the 

budget.  

 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 23, 2016, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Mr. Burgoon said the other issue with trying to do this now is that AAU and lacrosse will have to 

be taken off these fields for four to six weeks to do this and they will have to go to another 

location during that timeframe.  

 

It was the consensus to do the best we can with what we have to work with.  

 

The Council recessed at 4:38 p.m. and reconvened at 4:45 p.m. 

Utility Maintenance: reviewed and discussed. 

Discussion ensued regarding the replacement of AC pipe. Mayor Kilsheimer advised we are 

receiving $250,000 from the State toward replacement and we will be requesting additional 

funds. 

 

It was the consensus to put $50,000 back in the 6400 account for the mini excavator with trailer.  

 

Utility Billing:  reviewed and discussed. 

Discussion ensued regarding the merchant service fees. Ms. Barclay advised that a change to this 

will be brought to City Council in the near future to pass the fee to the customer.  

 

Wastewater Maintenance: reviewed and discussed. 

 

Mr. Davoll explained the 5200 account includes the maintenance of the lift stations.  He advised 

the first two items on the 6300 account were place holders in the event repairs are required. The 

6400 account is for equipment and machinery. They have very aged equipment and are working 

to replace the worst. 

 

Restoration: reviewed and discussed. 

Mr. Davoll explained the 5200 account is higher as all of restoration was moved under 

restoration. Previously there were parts of restoration under Water Maintenance and Sewer 

Maintenance as well. He requested due to two other divisions being moved under Restoration, 

the $40,000 be placed back in the 5200 account. 

 

It was the consensus of Council to place the $40,000 back under the 5200 account of Restoration. 

 

Design Engineering: reviewed and discussed. 

 

Public Utilities, Debt Service: reviewed and discussed. 

 

Sanitation Fund: reviewed and discussed. 

Ms. Barclay advised they were projecting having $1.78 million in the Sanitation Fund balance at 

the end of this fiscal year. Revenues are projected at $5.1 million. 

 

Ms. Barclay pointed out a correction to the 4903 account, advising the temporary labor was 

included on the worksheet but the worksheet did not link properly, therefore, $79,487 will be 

added to this account on the line item detail page. 

 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 23, 2016, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Mr. Davoll said under the 6400 account, Item 2, is requesting a used satellite garbage truck at 

$70,000. He advised under the Sheriff’s contract has the new version under $110,000. He 

requested $40,000 added to this account to be able to purchase new rather than used.  

 

It was the consensus to amend the 6400 account in order to purchase a new satellite garbage 

truck. 

 

Airport Fund:  reviewed and discussed. 

Mr. Irby advised this is a proprietary fund to the City. The City owns the FBO building and it is 

leased to various tenants. The City is also the sole provider of aviation fuel. The Airport Fund 

was separated from the General Fund for accounting purposes. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the 3100 account, Contractual Services with Randall A. Sommers.  

It was the consensus to leave this in the budget, but revisit in the future. 

 

Utilities Impact Fees Fund:  reviewed and discussed. 

 

Ms. Barclay advised Impact Fees have been paying for the reclaimed water facility. The 

wastewater plant will also come out of this fund.  She affirmed the State Revolving funds are not 

paid until completion.  

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP): 

Ms. Barclay stated the CIP is a plan that earmarks where we plan to go and it is not definitive. 

She pointed out page 694 includes the Public Safety Complex. She reiterated the CIP is to 

provide a plan for the future, and does not automatically pull into the budget for future years.  

 

Overall Review:  

Ms. Barclay provided an overview for the items to be added back into the budget for both 

expenditures and revenues. The last time they met the amount was at $1.3 million being added 

back in. Since that time, she has reviewed the revenues and made adjustments, coming up with 

an additional $583,000 in revenues to add to the budget.  If financing the additional police 

vehicles, this will bring the revenues up to just over $48,815,000. She stated with everything that 

has been added to the expenses, adding the additional firefighters and equipment, and by 

postponing hiring of other additional employees as they had previously discussed, it is short 

$448,223. She affirmed if adding in $1.2 million for the .5 increase of the millage rate; rather 

than going to the reserves for $2.6 million, they will be going to reserves for $1.8 million.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the inmate program and whether to add back in a maintenance 

worker under Recreation at $35,343. 

 

Discussion was held regarding travel, the radio program and advertising, the value of these, and 

whether to scale these back.  

 

Commissioner Becker suggested having a data driven reach for advertising so to reach the most 

people possible.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the decision to be made is whether to go with the .5 mill increase.  

7



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a City Council Budget Workshop held on August 23, 2016, at 3:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Commissioner Bankson said the fact that the millage increase would lessen the amount being 

taken from reserves he was happy to see them looking at this.  

 

Ms. Barclay pointed out that there will be a full year of firefighters to be funded in the next year 

and the millage increase will cover the firefighters moving forward.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this was a modest increase that covers a new communications tower, the 

addition of required public safety in order to set Apopka up for success.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said Apopka was still one of the lowest and the $1.2 million will cover 

the expenses projected for public safety. She supported the increase.  

 

Commissioner Dean supported adding the .5 millage increase.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said he was pleased they were putting reserves back which was his 

sticking point. He stated that they have made compromises in areas that were in the right 

direction, putting priorities first, and said we had to do something for our public safety.  

 

It was the consensus to proceed with the .5 millage increase as previously set as the tentative 

millage rate, and direct staff to include all of the items in the budget as discussed today.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further discussion, the workshop adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 

p.m. 

 

ATTEST:       ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

8



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. City Council Budget Hearing September 14, 2016. 
  

9



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 14, 2016, at 5:05 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

  

 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

     Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

     Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  The invocation was given by Pat McGuffin. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

A. ANNOUNCE AND ADOPT MILLAGE RATE OF 3.7876, WHICH IS 22% ABOVE THE 

ROLLED BACK RATE OF 3.0916.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this was a public hearing to hear and consider comments and questions 

considering the City’s tentative millage rate and tentative annual budget for FY 2016/2017. He said 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, recommends the City Council set September 28, 2016 for a final 

public hearing date and approve the tentative ad valorem taxation for the fiscal year commencing 

October 1, 2016 and ending September 30, 2017.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced the City of Apopka hereby proposes for FY 2016/2017 a millage rate 

of 3.7876 per $1,000 of non-exempt assessed valuation. Said rate is 22.51% higher than the rolled-

back rate of 3.0916 per $1,000 of non-exempt assessed valuation as computed by Florida Statute 

200.065. This will be considered following the budget presentation by Pam Barclay, Finance 

Director. 

 

A budget presentation was given by Finance Director Pam Barclay, showing an overview of the 

proposed Fiscal year 2017 Budget. She said it has been time consuming and said in March the 

Finance Department delivered financial worksheets to the Department Directors to submit their 

budget requests and these were due on April 15, 2016. The workbooks were compiled and during 

May and June, and Mayor Kilsheimer, City Administrator Glenn Irby, and Finance Director Barclay 

met with each Department to discuss submittals. In July, the workbooks were provided to the City 

Council and five workshops were held during July and August to discuss the contents.  She reported 

the total budget being presented for FY 2016/2017 is $104,083,516, an increase of $14.4 million, 

10



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 14, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

(16.1%) over last year. The General Fund budget is $49,293,103, an increase of $6.16 million 

(14.3%). Taxable values as reported by the Property Appraiser increased 9.5%. The proposed millage 

rate is 3.7876 which is .5 mills above the current rate of 3.2876 and it is .6960 mills above the roll 

back rate of 3.0916. She stated the General Fund  unrestricted reserves are sufficient to cover 

expenses for at least two months, stating the GFOA benchmark is two months of general fund 

reserves, equivalent to 16.7%.  She stated this budget expands the current level of public safety. We 

are adding 33 positions, (32 fulltime and 1 part-time). It includes performance based pay raises only, 

and the General Fund Capital Outlay total is $6.2 million, an increase of $2.3 million over last year. 

She advised the total budget of $104,083,516 combines all of the funds (general fund, eight special 

revenue funds, and three enterprise funds). She reviewed graphs of where the money comes from and 

how it is spent, pointing out the state revolving fund of $16 million will pay for the wastewater 

treatment expansion. She reviewed the millage rate history and advised that with the increase, the 

City of Apopka will be the second lowest in Orange County.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

Tenita Reid said as a homeowner and taxpayer of the City of Apopka she opposed the proposed 

millage increase. She stated the garbage, water, sewer and reclaimed water rates have been increased 

and will continue to increase over the next five years. She said the fees for ball fields has been 

increased. The fee for cutting off the water and turning it back on has increased, as well as 

emergency call fees being increased.  She said the City was making over $1 million in selling dirt to 

DOT. She stated the City agreed to pay money back to a developer for a ramp that should be built by 

the expressway authority or the developer himself. She said the utility rate study stated the City was 

not collecting enough in impact fees. She said the City was giving tax dollars to the schools when 

this should be the job of the schools. She said it was wrong to spend tax dollars to subsidize the 

youth working at private businesses. She also spoke against money being spent for travel.  

 

Ray Shackelford said we all value public safety that makes up 63% of the budget, but we must also 

value programs and services for children, families, seniors, and veterans on fixed incomes. He 

declared the millage rate does not need to be raised due to potential budget cost savings. He stated 

the salaries in the Mayor’s office would increase 16%. He stated tax dollars did not need to be spent 

on alcohol. He said tax money did not need to be spent on deficit spending programs such as the Old 

Florida Outdoor Festival. He stated the city needs to be honest with the public, not raise the millage 

rate, or use reserves to balance the budget  

 

Tony McArthur spoke against the proposed millage rate increase and said increasing the cost for 

someone to legally stay in their home or keep a business was a very serious matter. He said tax 

increases can threaten one’s ability to stay in their home or to keep their business. He stated inflation 

was running at 2% and salaries were not going up for most people. He said under state law the 

maximum assessed value increase that a millage rate can be applied to for a homesteaded property is 

3% so people will not be forced out of their homes. He said this millage rate increase circumvents 

that state law that has been important to citizens for decades. He stated the City has a serious 

spending problem and has for years.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 14, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Commissioner Dean said he felt the millage rate could be kept the same if we cut back on some of 

the items. He stated he did not want any of the projects taken out of the budget, but suggested the 

following items could be reduced by these amounts: Gospel Fest $50,000, Old Florida Outdoor 

Festival $250,425, Food and Wine $30,000, Fourth of July $40,000, Recreation $250,000, requests 

Capital $145,000. He declared making cuts could save $1,459,556. He said if the millage is 

increased 3.7876 we will save $1,263,336. He also stated the splash pad be reduced by $250,000.  

 

Ms. Barclay explained the splash pad was being paid for by impact fees and this would not affect the 

General Fund.  

 

Ms. Barclay inquired what aspect or line items in the Recreation Department did he suggest be 

reduced by $250,000. 

 

Mr. Irby advised they were only coming up with approximately $580,000 based on the suggested 

amounts to reduce. He said to reduce the millage by .5 mill, they need to come up with $1,263,336 to 

cut. He explained the budget is based on specifics and they need to know specifically where to make 

the reductions.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said he thought Gospel Fest and the Food and Wine Festival had already 

been cut to refocus on how to approach this in the future.  

 

Commissioner Becker said they reduced some of those costs through the workshop sessions. He 

stated it was abundantly clear from the beginning they wanted to reduce the amount taken from 

reserves and not have to raise the millage rate unless it was absolutely necessary. He declared 

through the course of the five workshops, they did not get to the spot where they could cut enough 

without having to go to reserves and raise the millage. He said we budget for these items and try to 

spend less than what is budgeted.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said his understanding was that all of the increase would go back into the 

reserves and it did not look like that was happening.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said at the final budget workshop they said they were reducing the reliance on 

reserves, but it was also clear, in order to balance the budget as proposed, they would have to use 

some reserves. He pointed out that the reserves being proposed for 2017 are not historical highs, but 

right in the middle of what the reserves have been over the last ten years. He also pointed out that the 

last two years money has been put into reserves.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said when looking at the budget and the future of what we will have to do 

with regards to safety issues. He stated initially it was $2.6 million from reserves and it was his 

understanding if the millage rate was increased it would go back to reserves, however, we are now at 

$1.7 million being taken from reserves. He said his concern was where the City was with the 

unrestricted reserves.  

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt a tentative millage rate of 3.7876, and set September 28, 2016 at 5:05 p.m. as the final 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 14, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

public hearing date. Motion carried by a three/two roll call vote, with Mayor Kilsheimer and 

Commissioners Velazquez, and Becker voting aye, and Commissioners Dean, and Bankson 

voting nay. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced The City of Apopka has approved the tentative rate of ad valorem 

taxation at a millage rate of 3.7876 mills for fiscal year 2016/2017. The said rate is 22.51% higher 

than the rolled-back rate of 3.0916 per $1,000 of non-exempt assessed valuation as computed by 

Florida Statute 200.065.  

 

B.  ADOPT PROPOSED BUDGET WHICH INCLUDE THE BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 

RESULTING FROM WORKSHOPS. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the City Administrator recommends that City Council set September 28, 

2016 at 5:05 p.m. as the final public hearing date, and approve the first reading of the tentative 

revenues, expenditures and fund balances for the City’s fiscal year budget commencing on October 

1, 2016, and ending September 30, 2017.  He reviewed the FY 2016/2017 tentative revenues, 

expenditures, and fund balances for the City’s fiscal year budget commencing on October 1, 2016, 

and ending September 30, 2017 as follows: 

 

GENERAL FUND  $                       49,293,103  

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND                             3,518,246  

TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEE FUND                             2,105,800  

LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND                                100,000 

RECREATION IMPACT FEES                                750,000 

STORMWATER FUND                                631,621 

GRANTS FUND 52,958 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND 67,150 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT FUND 2,285,439 

UTILITY OPERATING FUND 

                           

18,547,969  

SANITATION FUND 5,207,300  

AIRPORT FUND 386,930 

UTILITY IMPACT FEE FUND 21,137,000  

TOTAL BUDGET $                      104,083,516  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Ray Shackelford said in respect to the budget, one way to save money is to freeze general 

government at the 2015/2016 level.  He said if freezing at this level, it would save $700,000. He 

stated there were other items in the budget that could be looked at for a savings that could reach up to 

the $1.2 million that the millage rate increase will come to. He said just because the City of Apopka 

has one of the lowest millage rates in Central Florida does not mean you spend the tax dollars. He 

13



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 14, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

stated there were people in the City of Apopka living in poverty, unemployed, and seniors and 

veterans on fixed incomes.  

 

Tony McArthur said before any new personnel are added, they need to consider modernizing the 

retirement plans for nonemergency employees. He said the burden on the public for guaranteed 

pension plans is extraordinary. He suggested the festivals could be done without using public money. 

He suggested the statues being done for Mayor Land could have been done with donated money. He 

said pay raises should be off the table other than a merit based bonus. He suggested a service 

agreement with Orange County to help funding the new fire station.  

 

Dennis Blank said when he looked at the budget, he was surprised at the amount of money being 

spent on entertainment. He stated in cities he is familiar with this is usually handled by the Chamber 

of Commerce, private groups, or church groups. He suggested there could be money saved by 

privatizing the garbage services and picking up garbage once a week.  

 

Rod Love said no one wants to see their taxes raised. He stated he did not envy the position the 

Council sits in today with making the hard decisions, stating with growth comes the pain. He spoke 

of public confidence and said some of the items in the budget leads back to this such as Apopka 

begins and ends with “A”. He said the state Legislative Budget Request Commission just met last 

week and there is going to be a $1.2 billion shortfall at the state level in 2018 and a $2 billion 

shortfall in 2019. He said the House Speaker has already announced there will be some cuts based on 

mission critical. He stated the City of Apopka needs to continue to look at things to cut and good 

questions that need to be asked. He said those sitting on the dais that are reaching out and having 

conversations with the community are appreciated.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Becker said they have gone through every page of the budget workbook through the 

workshop meetings. They have had conversations about every line in the budget and every Council 

member is trying to be fiscally responsible for the City of Apopka. He said the budget process was 

open to the public and the workshops were not very heavily attended. He stated there were areas that 

could be trimmed, but there was not enough time between now and October to do that.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez expressed disappointment with a 3/2 vote having spent as much time on 

this during the budget workshops. 

 

Commissioner Bankson agreed they did work hard and worked together on this. He said during those 

meetings not everything was agreed upon, but there was consensus. He stated there were still some 

items he disagreed on.  

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve the first reading of the FY 2016-2017 Budget and set September 28, 2016 at 5:05 p.m. 

as the final public hearing date. Motion carried three/two by a roll call vote with Mayor 

Kilsheimer and Commissioners Velazquez, and Becker voting aye, and Commissioners Dean, 

and Bankson voting nay. 

14



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 14, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 

C.  ANNOUNCE FINAL BUDGET MILLAGE RATE HEARINGS 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced the City of Apopka has approved the tentative budget for FY 

2016/2017 and sets September 28, 2016 at 5:05 p.m. as the final public hearing date. 

 

D.  ADJOURNMENT - With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 

 

 

 

_______________________________

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

15



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. City Council Budget Hearing September 28, 2016 
  

16



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

     Dale Fenwick, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  The invocation as given by Reverend John Fisher of First United Methodist 

Church. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Kilsheimer led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the City of Apopka City Council convenes this Public Hearing on the City of 

Apopka’s Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Final Millage rates and Final Budget as required by Florida 

Statutes, Chapters 129 and 200. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said Florida Statutes, Chapter 200 requires that A Final Public Hearing on the 

budget be preceded by a two to five day notice of that hearing. Florida Statutes, Chapter 129 requires 

that we advertise a summary of the final budget.  He asked the clerk if there was proof of publication 

that such notices have been given.  

 

City Clerk Goff said pursuant to these requirements, a summary of the final City Budget was 

provided for public review by means of advertisement in the Orlando Sentinel on Sunday, September 

25, 2016.  

 

SET FINAL MILLAGE & BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 

1. Resolution No. 2016-29 - Setting the millage levy for the fiscal year 2016-2017 at 3.7876. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-29 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, SETTING THE MILLAGE LEVY 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing, inviting citizens to comment on 

the Fiscal Year 2016-17 millage rate. 

17



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

 

Tenita Reid said she was opposed to the proposed tax increase and the process in which it 

was handled. She referenced an article in The Apopka Chief on July 18, 2016, stating the 

City’s budget called for the tax rates to remain the same as last year’s rate.  She said the 

budget workshops started and the public comment was eliminated. She spoke of meetings 

being cancelled on short notice. She stated the first opportunity for the public to comment 

was at the first public hearing on September 14, 2016 and she did not feel this was a fair 

process to the public. She said in listening to the August 23, 2016 budget workshop audio, 

the end of the meeting was discussing whether to raise the millage rate imposing a higher tax 

on the residents. She expressed disappointment in the last meeting.  

 

Ray Shackelford said he would like to echo what the previous speaker stated and said the 

millage rate does not need to be raised due to potential cost savings in the budget. He said 

after reviewing the budget multiple times, money can be saved in the budget. He asked if this 

Council was willing to save the taxpayers money. He called on Council to let the millage rate 

remain at 3.2876.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing.  

 

Commissioner Becker said there were several speakers at the last meeting that brought 

specific ideas to the Council. He stated in his research after the meeting he did not see a 

benefit in some of the suggestions such as privatizing garbage or a cost share venture on the 

fire station. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Resolution No. 2015-21, establishing Fiscal Year 2016-17 final millage rate at 

3.7876 mills, which represents an increase of 22.51% from the rolled back rate of 

3.0916 mills.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said she had an opportunity to go back and listen to the budget 

meetings. She stated she has heard the word “disappointed” with some criticism which she 

accepts. She said there were five budget workshops: July 19, July 20, July 26, August 16, and 

August 23, 2016, that totaled 21 hours and eighteen minutes. She pointed out there were 21 

days between the last workshop and the first public TRIM hearing meeting. She felt there 

was enough time in between to have addressed some clarification any of the Commissioners 

had regarding the budget and the millage. She said this is why she was surprised on the first 

vote. 

 

Commissioner Bankson said all of the different points during the meetings that he was in 

opposition to he did bring up, but they moved forward by consensus and that is how they 

have to work. Again, at the last meeting, it was his understanding that the excess would go 

back in the reserves and he did not realize he needed further clarification. He stated hearings 

18



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

are to provide the citizens the opportunity for input and then make those decisions. He said 

he did not see this as a closed event. 

 

Commissioner Dean agreed this is public money and citizens should have a say.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the budget as proposed by Administration is the compilation of work 

that began last February. Department heads submitted budgets and there were millions of 

dollars cut from the budget of what the department heads said they needed to operate their 

departments. He pointed out that virtually most of the department heads live in and are 

members of this community. He said they were not spendthrifts, but come forward with what 

they need to run this City responsibly. He stated we have growth coming and we need to be 

ready to set Apopka up for success. He spoke of the wastewater treatment plant, 

communication tower, and fire station to be built, stating there was nothing in this budget 

that was unnecessary.  

 

Motion carried by a three/two roll call vote with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Velazquez and Becker voting aye, and Commissioners Dean and 

Bankson voting nay. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced the City of Apopka has determined that a Final millage rate of 

3.7876 mills is necessary to fund the final budget. The final millage rate represents a increase 

of 22.52% from the rolled back rate of 3.0916 mills. 

 

Recess City Council meeting at 5:27 p.m.  

Convene the Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting. 

Reconvene the City Council meeting 5:35 p.m.  

 

2. Resolution No. 2016-30 - Adopt the annual budget for fiscal year 2016-2017 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the City Council reconvenes the Public Hearing on the City of 

Apopka’s Fiscal year 2016-17 Final Millage rates and Final Budget as required by Florida 

Statutes, Chapters 129 and 200.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-30 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE ANNUAL 

BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND, SPECIAL 

REVENUE FUNDS, AND ENTERPRISE FUNDS FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 proposed budget for all funds is balanced 

at $104,083,516. It is balanced at an operating millage rate of 3.7876, which is 22.51% above 

19



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 

the rolled back rate of 3.0916.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

Tenita Reid said she again has to state it has always been a tradition in Apopka to keep the 

taxes low and at the same time keep the services high. She said the first class Fire 

Department. Police, and the general employees all work for the common good of the City. 

She stated tax payers funds were not wasted, as it would have not been possible to continue 

on that path of years of steady good services and reserves. She said she takes exception when 

she hears our City compared to other cities with much higher tax rates like we are getting 

short changed. She said we were the lucky ones and must guard against unnecessary tax 

increases. She said the budget should be cut to the truly necessary and not the wish list items. 

She stated the Commissioners need to ask some serious questions in the future as this year’s 

budget time is over. She said this year’s budget is 16.1% higher than last year’s operating 

budget. She stated she understood this year’s increase due to the fire department, extra 

personnel, equipment, and communication tower, but there was still a lot of cushioning in the 

budget. She suggested renting the amphitheater for events, implement impact fees, and look 

into a hotel tourist tax.  

 

Ray Shackelford said public safety need to not be used as a reason to raise taxes. He said we 

all value public safety, but we also must value programs and services related to our families, 

children, seniors and veterans on fixed incomes. He applauded Commissioners Bankson and 

Dean for standing up for the interest of people on fixed income. He stated potential cost 

savings projects would include to freeze general government at the 2015/2016 level and this 

would save $700,000.  Under the proposed budget salaries in the Mayor’s office would 

increase 16% while some City staff will receive merit increases. He stated tax money should 

not be spent on a food and wine event. He said to reduce the Old Florida Outdoor Festival by 

$250,000 and asked if there would be an RFP issue. He suggested holding the Gospel Fest on 

Sunday following the Old Florida Outdoor Festival with a promoter and save $50,000. He 

suggested reducing the fireworks by $40,000, and reduce the splash pad by $250,000. He 

suggested saving $70,000 on the Apopka Begins and Ends with “A”, freeze the fleet 

purchases except for public safety which would save $145,000 for a proposed budget savings 

of $1.6 million, and millage rate of 1.2. This is a potential savings of over $300,000.  

 

Suzanne Kidd gave the dates and timeframe for the Budget Workshops, stating that for 22 

hours the Council sat through workshops listening to the department heads plead their case 

for more staff or better equipment to be able to do the work of running the City. She said they 

painted a bleak picture of staff slammed with an increased workload of a growing city, 

striving to salvage aged and outmoded equipment, staff struggling to do more with less.  She 

sat through all of the 22 hours of workshop absorbing staff’s needs. She pointed out that the 

City of Apopka has two officers per 1,000 residents which is a fraction of the three per 1,000 

residents that is averaged of cities n the I-4 corridor. She said to raise that to the 2.5 state 

20



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

average, Chief McKinley would need 20 more officers. Knowing he could not request that 

many officers at once, he only asked for five.  Fire Chief Carnesale advised Council that state 

law now requires him to assign more firefighters to each station per shift to satisfy the two in 

and two out rule. He explained Apopka has not added additional firefighters for fifteen years, 

even with our population increase. This budget responds to this critical need by funding 18 

additional firefighters, a fifth fire station, together with the equipment. She suggested two of 

the Commissioners decided that expanding our protection was too much when they voted no 

on this budget, as well as objecting to the use of reserves to close the revenue gap created by 

these dire needs. She declared the $1.7 coming from reserves will only partially cover the 

third critical required expense of the communication tower. Paying for capital improvements 

like this is an accepted use of reserves and does not negatively impact our reserves since 

nearly $2 million in unspent budget dollars went back into our reserves during the last two 

years because of smart money management practices by staff.  She said this budget begins to 

address pressing needs and she urged a unanimous approval of this budget.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Commissioner Becker said when he moved here, the high marks for police and fire services 

was one of the reasons he moved here. He stated if we do not move in accordance with our 

population growth and what residents expect of our services, we will fail. He said it was 

worth mentioning that our taxes are low, even with the 3.7876 rate.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean asking about the 16% increase in salaries, Ms. Barclay 

said looking at the numbers the entire salary is at 6% increase.  She explained that 

Commissioner Arrowsmith’s retirement is included in that number.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said it was a gross mischaracterization to say voting against this was 

voting against fire and police, He stated those were two things that were very paramount for 

him to push for. He agrees there are things that have been left too long that has to be 

addressed and cannot be ignored. He said they all worked very hard and kept conversations 

positive, yet there were some things they disagreed on. He said there were other areas he 

feels needs to be changed. He declared his concern was with the next few years beyond this 

and building the reserves.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

adopt Resolution No. 2016-30 adopting revenues, expenditures, and fund balances for 

the City’s Fiscal Year Budget commencing on October 1, 2016, and ending on 

September 30, 2017. Motion carried by a four/one roll call vote with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez and Becker voting aye and Commissioner 

Bankson voting nay. 

 

 

21



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on September 28, 2016, at 5:05 p.m. 

Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this concludes the Public Hearing on the City of Apopka’s 

Fiscal Year 2015-16 Final Millage rates and Final Budget as required by Florida Statutes, 

Chapters 129 and 200. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 6:07 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

22



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. City Council meeting October 5, 2016 
  

23



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016, at 1:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker 

City Attorney Drew Smith 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   Teresa Sargeant - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Mr. James Delgado of Apopka High School, 

who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on October 2, 1961, that Thurgood 

Marshall was sworn in as the first African American Justice of the United States Supreme Court. 

Before his appointment, Thurgood Marshall served as the NAACP’s Chief Counsel from 1938 to 

1961, during which time he played a pivotal role in registering African American voters 

throughout the south and in Central Florida. As NAACP’s Special Counsel, Marshall served as 

lead counsel for the defendant in the notorious Groveland Four case. Marshall also successfully 

argued the Brown v. Topeka Board of Education case in 1954, which ended segregation in public 

education. This victory gave strength to the Civil Rights Movement, eventually leading to the 

desegregation of public facilities and accommodations. He asked everyone to remember those 

men and women who, like Thurgood Marshall, dedicated their lives to our Civil Rights 

Movement as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop July 26, 2016. 

2. City Council workshop August 16, 2016. 

3. City Council Special meeting August 23, 2016. 

4. City Council meeting September 21, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the minutes of July 26, 2016, August 16, 2016, August 23, 2016, and September 21, 2016. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Bankson and Becker voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Employee Recognition: 

Five Year Service Award – Elmer “Pete” Baker III – Police/Support Services - Pete began 

working for the City on September 20, 2011, as a Police Officer.  From January 27, 2013, 

through September 10, 2016, he served a temporary assignment as a Lead Police Officer.  On 

24



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

September 11, 2016, he returned to Police Officer in the K-9 unit, which is his current position. 

Officer Baker was not present and his award will be presented to him at a later time.  

 

Ten Year Service Award – Elizabeth Hyatt – Public Services/Director’s Office - Elizabeth 

began working for the City on September 5, 2006, as an Administrative Assistant, which is her 

current position. The Commissioners joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Elizabeth on 

her years of service. 

 

Ten Year Service Award – Stephen Tapscott – Police/Field Services - Stephen began 

working for the City on September 25, 2006, as a Police Officer.  On September 11, 2016, he 

was promoted to Police Sergeant, which is his current position. The Commissioners joined 

Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Sergeant Tapscott for his years of service. 

 

Fifteen Year Service Award – Carolyn Rogers – Community Development/Building - 

Carolyn began working for the City on September 25, 2001, as a Secretary I.  On April 9, 2015, 

her title was changed to Permit Clerk, which is her current position. The Commissioners joined 

Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Carolyn for her years of service. 

 

Twenty Year Service Award – Jerome Miller – Police/Field Services - Jerome began working 

for the City on September 4, 1996, as a Police Officer.  On April 19, 2005, he was promoted to 

Police Sergeant and on July 3, 2007, he was promoted to Police Commander, which became 

titled Police Lieutenant in October of 2009.  January 1, 2011, he was promoted to Police Captain, 

which is his current position. The Commissioners jointed Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating 

Captain Miller for his years of service.  

 

Twenty Year Service Award – Stacey “Matt” Roney – Fire/Suppression - Matt began with 

the City as a Volunteer Fire Fighter.  On September 24, 1996, he was hired as a Fire Fighter, 

which became titled Fire Fighter 1st Class later that year.  On October 6, 2003, he was promoted 

to Fire Engineer, which is his current position. The Commissioners joined Mayor Kilsheimer in 

congratulating Matt for his years of service. 

 

Presentations: 

1. Presentation of a check to Apopka High School to promote & support the Academic 

Consortium of Scholars. 

Chief McKinley presented a check in the amount of $1,500 to Apopka High School’s 

Academic Consortium of Scholars. Mr. Delgado thanked the City of Apopka for their 

support and explained that this program recognizes students academically in the same 

manner athletes are recognized by providing students with apparel based upon their GPA.  

 

2. Apopka Police Department Promotions to Lieutenant. 

Chief McKinley said both Lieutenants were out and making preparations for the hurricane.  

 

3. Apopka Police Department Promotions to Sergeant. 

Chief McKinley commended all who were promoted to Sergeant and said these individuals 

went through a written exam, a full review board that was very competitive. He recognized 

Sergeant Stephen Tapscott, Sergeant Dan Hall, and Sergeant Cindy Hall.  

 

25



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

Public Comment Period: 

John Crosby said he was a long time resident of Apopka and owner of the Crosby Motor Inn. He 

expressed concerns regarding the lighting along Errol Parkway and Lake Francis Drive and the 

age of the lighting along those roads. He asked that the use of golf carts and the misuse of the golf 

carts be addressed. He spoke about resort tax collection and said the City of Apopka should get 

involved in the resort tax collection to benefit the City, stating that Apopka has six hotels. He left 

news articles with the clerk regarding resort tax.  

 

Ray Shackelford said he wanted to correct something he previously stated and said when he made 

reference to 16% increase in regular salaries for the Mayor’s office saying that should have been 

for 2014 through 2015. He inquired if RFP’s were issued for Consent Agenda Items 5, 6, and 7 

for these services and asked what the amount was for Item 5. He said at the last Council meeting 

there were cities mentioned as having higher millage rates than Apopka and he stated according to 

the websites of Altamonte Springs and Winter Springs show lower millage rates than Apopka. He 

stated the City of Apopka’s budget was higher than three cities with similar population that have 

higher millage rates. He said a low millage rate does not guarantee fiscal integrity and respect for 

spending tax money. He asked how many on Council would like for citizens to include their name 

in comments and not be given the opportunity to respond. He applauded both Commissioners 

Dean and Bankson for voting against the tax increase stating this was a sign of respect for the tax 

money and citizens of Apopka.  

 

Rod Love said he was a seven year resident of Apopka and his wife was born and raised in 

Apopka. He stated he got involved in working with the community through his father-in-law. He 

said in looking at the process in the City as it relates to the equitability of spreading the resources 

and no bid contracts, as well as the issue of women, veteran, and minority businesses in Apopka 

being able to participate in the process. He said he has had conversations with all the 

Commissioners relative to them representing all of Apopka and would like to see them speak up 

regarding the $25,000 maximum process on no bid contracts. He stated he supports law 

enforcement and the increase to support them, but there was no excuse for this contract issue.  

 

Isadora Dean said she has been a resident for 36 years, and her issue was different, stating she 

recently went through a humiliating experience during her campaign recently. She stated while 

she was out campaigning she was standing in front of Wolf Lake Middle or Elementary School 

and was waiving her campaign sign when she was approached by the Police Chief who asked her 

to get off the grass and stand on the sidewalk so not to be on school property. She said they have 

to follow rules and laws but said he was only doing this after receiving a call from the Mayor. She 

said everyone should be treated with integrity, and police officers should protect the citizens.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer declared he heard about this matter after the fact.  

 

Jim Sursely said he was here on behalf of the National Wild Turkey Federation and a group called 

Wheelin’ Sportsmen. He stated they have had the honor in using City property off of Marshall 

Lake in the past for a dove hunt which is used to support this organization to encourage disabled 

and handicapped individuals to get out in the woods and be involved in activities encouraging a 

greater lifestyle and participation in the outdoors. He asked Council to consider renewing that 

approval to utilize this property.  

 

26



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

Commissioner Dean inquired if bids were solicited for the Consent Items 5, 6, and 7 for these 

contracts.  

 

Mr. Irby advised they were not. He stated that Item 5 was a continuation of a contract that we 

already have with this company. Items 6 and 7 are specifically excluded by Florida Statute from 

having the bid process because they are entertainers.  

 

Commissioner Dean inquired if the group getting the $125,000 was excluded by the Statute.  

 

Mr. Irby advised this was the Birchmore Group and it was nonspecific as to money, stating the 

Statute does not speak to the dollar amount.  

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of August, 2016. 

2. Approve an annual maintenance agreement with Motorola. 

3. Authorize a contract with the Department of Corrections for an inmate work squad. 

4. Award a contract for lobbyist services to Gray Robinson. 

5. Approval to extend an agreement with Shepherd and Wolfe Marketing Associates for event 

coordination. 

6. Approval to enter into an event service agreement with Roar Music, LLC. 

7. Approval to enter into an event service agreement with Birchmore Group, Inc. 

 

Item six was pulled for discussion.  Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was for Gospel Fest and the 

budgetary authority was not in place until after October 1, 2016. He affirmed the planning has 

been in place for some time.  

 

David Burgoon, Recreation Director, said they have been planning Gospel Fest and working 

with this group for the past few months waiting for the budget to be approved.  Once the budget 

was approved, they brought this forward to secure the entertainment. If approved today, they can 

move forward with making the announcements for the entertainment and advertising. He advised 

there were professional gospel groups that cannot be announced until approval.  

 

Following discussion and due to concerns of the timeframe, Item 6 was pulled.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to approve 

items one, two, three, four, five, and seven on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Bankson and 

Becker voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised Items 1 and 2 were quasi-judicial hearings. The witnesses were 

sworn in by the clerk.  

 

1. Preliminary Development Plan – Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park 

David Moon, Planning Manager, stated this item and the next item address the Preliminary 

Development Plan, Mass Grading Plan, as well as the Developer’s Agreement for Wekiva 

Parkway Industrial Park, located south of General Electric Roadway, south of U.S. 441, 

27



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

directly to the east of Hermit Smith Road and running along S.R. 429. The site contains 

approximately 140 acres, the owner is Mid Florida Freezer, the applicant and engineer is June 

Engineering.  In general, the applicant is requesting a seven lot industrial park that will have 

first access off of General Electric as they will see in the proposed subdivision plan. To create 

this plan, there is an existing un-named, undeveloped public right-of-way under the 

maintenance of the City of Apopka. The applicant is requesting agreement that this be vacated 

at a future time and in exchange the applicant will dedicate land to the City as right-of-way for 

future connection to Peterson Road to the east. He advised the surrounding property is 

consistent with the zoning of the property. He stated part of the Final Development Plan is a 

Mass Grading Plan that allows the applicant to remove fill from the site and sale the dirt, 

dropping the grade six to eight feet. He advised in exchange for removing fill from these 

areas, the City will receive 10% of the revenues the property owner receives for that fill.  He 

advised the Planning Commission held a special meeting May 24, 2016 and recommended 

approval with conditions. DRC recommends approval subject to the findings of staff and 

conditions of approval. He advised the site will be excavated in phases and each phase will 

have reclamation with sod.  

 

Randy June of June Engineering, was present to answer questions. In response to 

Commissioner Velazquez, he advised after the grading they will need to get the property 

prepared and put the roads in, then market it to users.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the Preliminary Development Plan for Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park, as 

presented. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Mass Grading Plan/Developers Agreement – Wekiva Parkway Industrial Park 

 

Mr. Moon advised the applicant will still need to submit the Final Development Plan for the 

Industrial Park, therefore, the City will see this site again through another application. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the Mass Grading Plan and Developers Agreement for Wekiva Parkway 

Industrial Park. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Approve the second amendment to the Marden Road interchange Cost Sharing 

Agreement. 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, this was the second amendment to the Cost Share Agreement 

with MMI Development for the construction of a half interchange connecting S.R. 414 to 

Marden Road.  

28



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

 

Michael Wright, thanked Council for all of their work in the past sand said he was looking 

forward to delivering something unique to the City of Apopka. He said with the addition of 

the roundabouts it will make this something the City can be very proud about. He reviewed a 

PowerPoint presentation and reviewed the area on a map pointing out S.R. 414 connecting to 

S.R. 429, pointing out the hospital complex and the distribution center in this area, as well as 

the apartments currently under construction. He stated last year they had a conceptual 

alignment and pointed out how this alignment has changed with the roundabouts. The two 

intersections to be created along Marden Road by the new interchange will require either 

signalization or other traffic control devices and roundabouts are the staff choice as they keep 

traffic moving and they are less costly to construct and maintain.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public comment.  No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public comment. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the second amendment to the Marden Road interchange Cost Sharing 

Agreement. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Approve the use of property for the purpose of a charity dove hunt. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this idea was brought to the City by Lou Haubner and this dove hunt 

has been done in partnership with the City for many years in the past. Mr. Haubner worked 

with the City Attorney to negotiate an agreement. He recommended approval.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve the use of city property for a Charity Dove Hunt. Motion carried unanimously 

with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson 

voting aye. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2510 – Second Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Business Tax Receipts”  

Postponed to November 2, 2016. 
ORDINANCE NO. 2510 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE IV, SECTION 74-104 OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES PERTAINING TO “VEHICLES FOR 
HIRE” BY REMOVING LANGUAGE INDICATING THAT CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVAL IS REQUIRED FOR DRIVERS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2511 – First Reading – Code of Ordinances, “Vehicles for Hire 

Postponed to November 2, 2016. 

 

29



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 7 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2511 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, VACATING 
AND DELETING THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 86 OF THE CITY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES AS CURRENTLY WRITTEN, ADOPTING 
NEW PROVISIONS IN SAID CHAPTER AMENDING THE 
PERMITTING AND REGULATIONS OF TAXICABS AND CREATING 
REGULATIONS FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES AND 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK APPLICATION COMPANIES AND 
OPERATORS; AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

postpone Ordinance No. 2510 and Ordinance No. 2511 to the City Council meeting on 

November 2, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2518 – Second Reading – PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development 

Plan.  

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by the 

clerk. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2518 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2355, CHANGING MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA 
RATIO FROM 0.25 TO 0.30 AND AMENDING THE APPROVED 
MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 
OLD DIXIE HIGHWAY, EAST OF RICHARD L. MARK DRIVE, AND 
SOUTH OF ERROL PARKWAY, COMPRISING 6.99 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS, AND OWNED BY ROBERT K. DUNN ET. AL.; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2518. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2519 – First Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2519 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2170, CHANGING THE ASSIGNMENT OF 
OWNERSHIP FOR TRACT “B” AND “F” AND AMENDING THE 

30



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 8 

 
APPROVED ORCHID ESTATES MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY AND 
NORTH OF APPY LANE, AND OWNED BY JTD LAND AT ORCHID 
ESTATES, LLC., PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, gave a brief lead-in on this ordinance, stating Orchid Estates 

is an existing approved residential subdivision with 112 lots located on the west side of Jason 

Dwelley Parkway, north of Appy Lane. City Council approved this residential subdivision in 

2006 and as part of the conditions of the PUD, the developer/property owner, was to dedicate 

two acres to the City of Apopka for a fire station and to preserve approximately 15 acres of 

trees and open space that also is to be dedicated to the City of Apopka.  The City and Fire 

Department found a more strategic location for a fire station site along Jason Dwelley and the 

City staff does not feel it necessary for the City to maintain 15 acres of open space that 

primarily serves and benefits the future homeowners within Orchid Estates. The amendment 

to the PUD is solely to change the future ownership of Tract “B” and Tract “F” from the City 

of Apopka to the Orchid Estates Homeowners Association.  He advised staff initiated this 

change with the property owner and they agreed to make that change.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2519 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2520 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment. The 

City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2520 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 
10 AC) TO “CITY” MIXED USE, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1850 S. BINION RD., COMPRISING 5.6 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS, AND OWNED BY EQUITY WATERS EDGE LLC; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Witnesses were sworn in by the clerk for Ordinance 2520 and Ordinance 2521. 

 

Kyle Wilkes, Planner, said this was a small-scale, future land use amendment for a 5.6 acre 

piece of property that was annexed into the City and has not been assigned future land use 

designation, nor a city zoning classification. This property is owned by Equity Waters Edge, 

LLC, as well as two properties to the south of this site. They intend to incorporate this into the 

31



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

southern tracts for approximately a 75 acre single family residential development. The City 

has received a Preliminary Development Plan from the applicant which is currently under 

review by DRC. The applicant is requesting to change the future land use to City Mixed Use. 

The properties to the south and to the north of this property has a Mixed Use future land use 

designation. DRC recommends approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2520 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2521 – First Reading – Change of Zoning. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2521 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” MIXED-EC FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1850 S. 

BINION RD., COMPRISING 5.6 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED 

BY EQUITY WATERS EDGE LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Wilkes said this was the same lead-in as the previous ordinance. The requested zoning 

classification of City Mixed-EC is consistent with the surrounding area and compatible with 

the mixed use future land use designation.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2521 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2522 – First Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2522 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 

PORTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY(ALLEYWAY); LOCATED SOUTH OF 

EAST 6TH  STREET AND WEST OF SOUTH HIGHLAND AVENUE; IN 

SECTION 09, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, 

32



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 

SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Rogers Beckett, Senior Project Coordinator, said this Ordinance is requesting the vacate of an 

unimproved alleyway located south of east Sixth Street, west of South Highland Avenue, and 

north of East Seventh Street. This request is to accommodate redevelopment of the site. This 

does not affect any abutting property owners. DRC has reviewed and recommends approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2522 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2523 – First Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2523 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 

PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; LOCATED EAST OF 

BINION ROAD AND SOUTH OF BEARDSLEY DRIVE; IN SECTION 07, 

TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 

SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mr. Beckett this request is for vacating a portion of Johns Road right-of-way. All property 

owners have been notified. DRC has reviewed and recommends approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2523 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

9. Resolution 2016-31 – Amend Capital Improvement Plan reflecting improvements to 

Apopka Athletic Complex. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-31 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 

APPLICATION FOR THE FLORIDA RECREATION DEVELOPMENT 

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

33



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 11 

 

OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 

2017-2018. 

 

David Fox, Fox Enterprises, said the City was eligible to apply for a 2017-2018 FRDAP grant 

that is funded through environmental protection.  The grant highlights for a Florida Recreation 

Development Assistance Program grant up to $50,000. At least 50% of the project must be 

active recreation and there is a deadline of October 28, 2016. He advised this is a competitive 

program, even though they funded all $50,000 projects last year. The proposed scope of work 

is for the Apopka Athletic Complex and he reviewed proposed estimated costs for 

improvements. He advised thirty points would be the maximum score for categories.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public comment. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public comment. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-31. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said Pastor Todd Lamphere was present and he has been working on Gospel 

Fest with staff. He asked Pastor Todd to provide his perspective on Gospel Fest with regards of 

what has been done so far.  

 

Pastor Lamphere said several months ago the Mayor had sent out an invitation to a group of 

pastors to talk about the possibility of putting together a Gospel Fest. He stated they began to 

work with Leah Shepherd on this. He had Anthony and Brittany Shepherd, who are worship 

Pastors for New Destiny Christian Center, work on this with staff, and they have a company, 

Roar Music, which is a production company. They were asked to secure national talent. He 

affirmed this is a project that has been in motion for several months now, just trying to secure 

talent. He advised they have been able to secure some very well-known acts, stating Tye Tribbett 

has been secured, Bianca, who is Christian R&B and well known has been secured. They have 

secured Entertainment Arts as the production company to be part of this.  He stated they have 

gone forward and worked with the team and said he believes this to be an event that will bring 

our City together, uplift, inspire, and encourage as a positive event. He said this is an event that 

will become nationally known.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said Item 6 had been pulled from the Consent Agenda and said if we lose out 

on Gospel Fest this year, we will be a year behind in trying to bring an event like this to the City.  

 

Pastor Lamphere said he believed this event will bring in a tremendous amount of people here 

and they have also asked local talent to participate. When asked if he believed they can pull in 

that amount of people together by November 12th, Pastor Lamphere responded in the affirmative.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean asking why Council did not know about this if it has been in 

the works for several months, Mr. Irby advised that staff has conversations on a daily/monthly 

basis on projects or events that are not brought to Council until the timing is right.  

34



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on October 5, 2016 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 12 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer affirmed this was brought to Council at the earliest possible moment, given 

the spending authority, and ability to make things clear. He said, according to the Charter, you 

cannot involve Commissioners in the daily business of the city on these negotiation aspects. He 

stated staff was doing the best they can to put the City’s best foot forward.  

 

Mr. Burgoon advised the $60,000 was not just for entertainment. It is for lighting, sound, 

backline, etc. He stated it was in the budget separated out by line items. It is combined here due 

to using one company for all of these items.  

 

Robert Sargent, Public Information Officer, spoke regarding advertising concerns stating they 

would advertise in the Orlando Sentinel to reach a broader base. They plan to post signage in 

strategic areas, print fliers and distribute them to local churches, advertise in magazines, utilize 

the City’s website, a website set up for Gospel Fest Apopka, social media, and advertise on radio 

stations.  

 

Mr. Burgoon affirmed there were no contracts signed by the City with anyone and Roar Music is 

under the understanding, in order to move forward, this has to be approved by the Council.  

 

Pastor Lamphere said he believes this can be a successful first time event that will be a building 

block to take this to a whole other level.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said if this is not approved today, there will not be a Gospel Fest. He asked 

for Council’s support. He called for a motion.  

 

There was no motion made.  

 

1. Letter from the Family of Mayor John H. Land regarding the proposed statue for City Hall. 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported they have received a letter from the John H. Land family giving 

final approval for the life size statue of Mayor Land on the City Hall property.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 4:36 p.m. 
 

 

 

        ___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

___________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

35



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of September, 2016. 
  

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Award a contract for a reclaim water service main extension on Ocoee - Apopka Road. 
  

148



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 19, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: RECLAIM WATER SERVICE MAIN EXTENSION ON OCOEE - APOPKA ROAD. 

 

REQUEST: AWARD THE CONTRACT TO PROVIDENCE CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT 

COMPANY. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On October 6, 2016, staff received the following sealed bids to construct a reclaim water service main extension: 
 

Company  Amount 

Stage Door II, Inc. $174,000 

Providence Construction & Development Company $191,794 

Estep Construction, Inc. (ECI) $244,200 

Sanpik, Inc. $389,940 
 

As outlined in the bid packet, this project is unique and requires an experienced contractor. The project consists 

of furnishing all transportation, materials, equipment, labor, services, and supplies necessary to construct a 

reclaim water service main extension on Ocoee - Apopka Road from Alston Bay Boulevard to Keene Road. The 

project includes, but is not limited to, the construction of approximately 1,840 linear feet of a 30-inch Ductile 

Iron Pipe and 135 linear feet of High Density Polyethylene Pipe. This project has to be completed by December 

31, 2016 in order to fulfill the funding requirements from SJRWMD, which is providing for half of the funds to 

construct the line.   
 

Stage Door II was the lowest bidder however after further review of references it was determined their 

experience did not meet the bid requirements. The owner of Stage Door II was notified of staff’s decision. 

 

The second lowest bidder was Providence Construction and Development and they provided recent and 

comparable projects meeting the qualifications outlined in the bid package.  Therefore, it is staff’s 

recommendation that Providence Construction and Development Company be selected as contractor of 

record for this project. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Allocated in the Reclaim Water Impact Fee Fund for FY2015/2016 and rolled over to FY2016/2017 to 

complete the project.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Award a contract to Providence Construction & Development Company in the amount of $191,794, plus a 

10% contingency if needed of $19,179.40 ($210,973.40). 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

149



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Award a construction contract to Rosenbauer America, LLC for a new fire engine. 
  

150



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 
 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  Oct. 19, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Fire Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      None 

     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 
SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION OF ONE NEW FIRE ENGINE 
 

Request: AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO ROSENBAUER AMERICA, LLC. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Fire Department is in the process of building a fifth fire station to service the northern portion of the City. This 

fire engine will be the front run fire engine to service this area. The Department currently operates four fire stations 

with six fire trucks. Two of these fire trucks are considered reserve trucks to be used when the front run trucks are out 

of service for repairs or maintenance. One of the reserve trucks is 19 years old while the other is 16 years old. The 

normal expected service life for a pumper is typically 15-18 years. It is not advisable to use either of these two reserve 

trucks as front run engines for any extended period of time. 

 

Pricing for the custom pumper, with department specific options, was obtained from the Florida Sheriffs Association 

Fire/Rescue Contract #FSA 16-VEF12.0, with Rosenbauer America, which is valid until 3/31/17. The Fire 

Department will piggy-back on this contract, in the amount of $531,597.  The Apopka Fire Department has budgeted 

for the addition of a new pumper (Fire Engine 5).  Rosenbauer has supplied the last four trucks purchased, dating 

back to 2011. Staff is pleased with the quality, price and service that Rosenbauer provides and wishes to continue to 

standardize the fleet of fire vehicles with Rosenbauer pumpers.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Fire Suppression Capital Equipment line 6400.  Purchase of the new custom pumper was approved in the FY 

2016/17 budget.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Fire Department requests council award the construction of this Fire Apparatus to Rosenbauer America, in the 

amount of $531,597. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

151



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Award a construction contract to Rosenbauer America, LLC for an Advanced Life Support Rescue vehicle. 
  

152



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 
 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  Oct. 19, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Fire Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      None 

     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 

SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION OF ONE EMS ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT AND RESCUE VEHICLE 
 

Request: AWARD THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO ROSENBAUER AMERICA, LLC. 

  
SUMMARY: 
 

The Apopka Fire Department’s Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Division has budgeted an Advanced Life 

Support (ALS) vehicle as part of the annual ambulance replacement program. This multi-purposed vehicle which was 

proposed during the budgeting process, will provide both advanced life support equipment for cardiac and medical 

patients, as well as specialized vehicle extrication equipment for rapid deployment to the northern portions of the 

City.  

 

The need for a vehicle that can be deployed rapidly to this area to provide Advanced Life Support, as well as 

specialized equipment for medical calls and vehicle accidents, has been identified. It has been determined that these 

type of incidents, in the remote areas of the northern district, cannot efficiently be covered solely by the specialized 

equipment that must respond from the downtown station. The response times would not be acceptable. This vehicle 

will be stationed and manned by personnel at the new Station 5 (Jason Dwelley). 

 

Pricing for an EMS Advanced Life Support Rescue Vehicle, with department specific options, was obtained from the 

Florida Sheriffs Association Fire/Rescue Contract #FSA 16-VEF12.0, with Rosenbauer America, which is valid until 

3/31/17. The Fire Department will piggy-back on this contract, in the amount of $182,000.  Rosenbauer will 

construct this vehicle and ensure delivery prior to completion of the fire station. Staff is pleased with the quality, price 

and service that Rosenbauer provides, and wish to continue to standardize our fleet of vehicles with Rosenbauer 

apparatus.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 
Fire Department EMS Capital Equipment line 6400. Funding for this EMS Rescue vehicle was approved in the FY 

2016/17 budget. 

 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Fire Department requests council award the construction of this EMS Rescue Vehicle to Rosenbauer America, in 

the amount of $182,000. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

153



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Approve the ranking of firms and authorize the negotiation of a contract for a Construction Manager at Risk for Fire Station 5. 
  

154



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA        MEETING OF: Oct 19, 2016  

______PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:       Fire Department 

      SPECIAL REPORTS           EXHIBITS:   Ranking  

      OTHER: 

  
SUBJECT:   RFQ 2016-17 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK (CMAR) SERVICES  

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE RANKING OF THE TWO INTERESTED FIRMS AND ALLOW STAFF 

TO NEGOTIATE A CONTRACT.  

  
SUMMARY:  

On September 26, 2016, the City received qualifications, data and expressions of interest for Construction Manager at 

Risk Services (CMAR) for the construction of the Fire Station 5 project. CMAR is a project-specific delivery method 

that is suited for medium to large capital or renovation projects. CMAR project delivery method allows the City to 

hire a construction manager during the design process to provide constructability input. The CMAR is generally 

selected on the basis of qualification, past experience or a best value basis. During the design phase, the CMAR 

provides input regarding scheduling, pricing, phasing and other input that helps the City design a more constructible 

project. Prior to design completion the City and the CMAR negotiate a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the 

construction of the project based on the defined scope and schedule. If this price is acceptable to both parties, they 

will execute a contract for construction services. If prices are not acceptable, the contract is put out for bid when the 

design is completed.  An Evaluation Committee consisting of the City Administrator, the Fire Chief and the Deputy 

Fire Chief reviewed the qualifications and ranked the top two firms as follows: 

 

1. Miller Construction Management Inc. 

2. Core Construction 

 

Staff is requesting authorization to negotiate a contract with Miller Construction Management Inc, using the 

Consultants Competitive Negotiations Act (CCNA). If an agreement cannot be negotiated, staff would then attempt 

to negotiate with the second firm. The negotiated contract will then be presented to the City Council for final 

approval. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

N/A 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
Approve the ranking of the two interested firms and direct staff to negotiate a contract using the CCNA process, 

which will be advertised and brought back before the City Council for final approval.     
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk 

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

155



RFQ 2016–17 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR FIRE STATION 5 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK

EVALUATION SUMMARY

RANKING BY POINTS AWARDED

EVALUATION FACTOR

MAXIMUM 

POINTS 

AVAILABLE

Core 

Construction

Miller 

Construction 

Management

Approach, Cost Modeling, 

Budgeting, Conceptual approach, 

Fees, Other.

90 65 75

Experience of the firm 45 37 30

Org Chart, Proposed Project 

Manager, Proposed Construction 

Superintendent, Proposed Cost 

Scheduler, Other Pertinent Staff

45 32 45

CMAR Experience 45 45 27

Financial Capabilities, ability to 

finance the Project as presented 

in the RFQ Exhibit E

15 15 15

Litigation History, past five years  

Exhibit F
15 15 15

Subcontractors Selection Plan for 

Construction Services
15 15 15

Current Workload Commitments 

throughout the anticipated 

construction period  Exhibit G

15 7 14

Safety History for the past five 

years  Exhibit H
15 15 13

TOTAL POINTS AWARDED 300 246 249

156



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2519 – Second Reading – Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan – Quasi-Judicial  David 
Moon 

  

157



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 19, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2519 

    Ordinance No. 2519 Exhibit “B” 
  
SUBJECT:    AMENDMENT TO THE ORCHID ESTATES PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

ZONING AND MASTER PLAN\PRLIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
REQUEST:  SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2519 - AN AMENDMENT 

TO THE ORCHID ESTATES PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMNET ZONING AND 
MASTER PLAN; AMENDING ORDINANCE NO.  2170.  (PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 18-20-
28-0000-00-055 & 18-20-28-0000-00-059; 18-20-28-0000-117 PORTION) 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: JTD Land at Orchid Estates, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   Engineering & Environmental Design, Inc., c/o Larry T. Ray P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Kelly Park Road, west of Jason Dwelley Parkway 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Planned Unit Development  
 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT: Ownership of Tract “B” and “F” will change from the City of Apopka to the 

Orchid Estates Homeowners Association.  Tract “B” will change from a City 
“fire station site” to aN “Open Space\Tot Lot” that will serve the 112 lots within 
the Orchid Estates PUD.  No other changes are proposed to the Master Plan. 

 
TRACT SIZE:   Combined total Acreage: 60.82 +/- Total Acres 
     
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 112 Dwelling Units (as approved with existing PUD zoning 

ordinance; plans expired) 
    PROPOSED: 112 Dwelling Units 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

158



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The applicant requests to change the future ownership of Tracts “B” and 

“F” from the City of Apopka to the Homeowners Association.  Tract “B” and Tract “F” are currently owned 

by JTD Land at Apopka, LLC, the developer.   City staff notified JTD Land at Apopka, LLC several months 

ago that a fire station site within the project boundaries was not needed because an alternative site was 

identified, and that the City does not need the 17.2 acre site for open space purposes.  JTD Land agreed to 

amend the PUD Master Plan to assign future ownership of two parcels from City ownership to HOA 

ownership.  Tract “B” was originally proposed to serve as a site for a new City fire station.  However, the 

City has made a decision to locate this new fire station at a more strategic location at a site along the east 

side of Jason Dwelley Parkway, across from the Northwest Regional Recreation Facility.  The City of 

Apopka already owns this preferred fire station site.  Orchid Estates is currently under construction, and 

model homes are proposed to begin construction within a few months.  Approval of the amendment to the 

PUD Master Plan will allow administrative amendment of the Final Development Plan to address the same 

change in ownership of Tract “B” and Tract “F”. 

 

The City’s Development Review Committee supports the change in the ownership of Tract “B” and Tract 

“F” to the homeowners association.  Dedication of Tract “F” will require the City to pay for the cost to 

maintain 17.2 acres of open space that is internal to a residential community.   A different site along Jason 

Dwelley Parkway has been selected for a future fire station.  Tract “B” will not be needed for this purpose. 
 
PUD DESCRIPTION:  A single family residential community with a total of 112 lots.  The minimum lot 
size is 70’ x 115’ (8,050 sq. ft.) with a minimum living area of 1,500 square feet as allow by the Land 
Development Code.  
 
 Minimum Site Area:  7,500 sq. ft. 
 Minimum Lot Width:  70’ 
 Setbacks: Front:  25’ 
   Side:  10’ 
   Rear:  20’ 
   Corner: 20’ 
 Minimum Living Area: 1,500 sq. ft. 
 
ALLOWABLE USES:  Single Family Residential homes and their associated uses. 
 
ACCESS:  The subdivision has two access points off of Jason Dwelley Parkway.  The property owner has 
control over the lands adjacent to the north.  An ingress/egress easement in favor of the applicant for legal 
access to the project runs along the southern property line of the Ever Meadow LLC parcel to reach the  
 
STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes two on-site retention areas.  The 
stormwater design meets the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 
BUFFER/PARK:  The applicant is proposing landscaped buffer areas adjacent to the agricultural uses 
located to the north and south of the property.  This residential community will include a 17.17 acre 
woodland park and a two-acre tot lot. 
 
TREE PROGRAM:   The applicant has proposed reserved 17.17 acres of land for open space within Tract 

“F” in lieu of going through the tree mitigation process.  This will preserve the mostly wooded area on the 

site as a City Park. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed amendment to the Orchid Estates PUD 
zoning and Master Plan are consistent with the City’s proposed Future Land Use designation.  Site 
development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

159



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  This PUD Master Plan is located on a site with a previously approved 
Final Development Plan.  This final development plan is exempt from school concurrency because it was 
approved by the City prior to the effective date of school concurrency.  School impact fees will be paid with 
each building permit application for a single family home. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 12, 2016. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
September 13, 2016 – Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
October 5, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
October 19, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 
October 7, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of Amendment to the Orchid Estates Planned 
Unit Development and the Master Plan. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting held September 13, 2016, found the Amendment to the Orchid 
Estates Planned Unit Development Zoning and the Master Plan to be consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and Land Development Code, and recommend to approve. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2519 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 19, 2016. 
 
Accept Ordinance No. 2519. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. Role of the Planning Commission in this 
case is advisory to the City Council. 

  

160



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

East (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD Vacant 

South (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD SFR (4) 

West (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) PUD Oak Ridge Subdivision 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY:  A transportation study was prepared with the adopted Orchid Estates 

PUD, and the number of residential units has not increased.  No 
additional transportation study is needed.  The amendment to the PUD 
zoning and Master Plan does not changes the subdivision design and 
stormwater management plan, but no increase in residential units or 
density is proposed.   

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS:   No changes to the buffers are proposed with the PUD amendment.     
  
ALLOWABLE USES:    Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting 
infrastructure and public facilities of less than five acres as defined 
in this code and in accordance with Section 2.02.01 of the LDC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
161



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 
JTD Land at Orchid Estates, c/o Larry Fant 

60.82 +/- Total Acres 
Existing Zoning Maximum Allowable Development: 112 Dwelling Units 

Proposed Zoning Maximum Allowable Development: up to 112 Dwelling Units 
Proposed Zoning Change: Amendment to the PUD and Master Plan\Final Development Plan  

To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/Residential) 
Parcel ID #s: 18-20-28-0000-00-055 & 18-20-28-0000-00-059 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

162



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 

163



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

ORCHID ESTATES – PUD AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

EXHIBIT “D” 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 
 

164



ORDINANCE NO. 2519 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2170, CHANGING THE ASSIGNMENT OF 
OWNERSHIP FOR TRACT “B” AND “F” AND AMENDING THE 
APPROVED ORCHID ESTATES MASTER PLAN\PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY AND 
NORTH OF APPLY LANE, AND OWNED BY JTD LAND AT ORCHID 
ESTATES, LLC., PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property owner has requested to amend Ordinance No. 2170 and its 
associated Master Plan to change the assignment of ownership for Tract “B” and “Tract F” from 
the City of Apopka to the designated Homeowners Association. 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to Ordinance No. 2170 has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I.  That the Orchid Estates Planned Unit Development Master Plan\Preliminary 
Development Plan, which property is described in Exhibit “A”, is amended to change assignment 
of ownership of Tract “B” from the City of Apopka to the Orchid Estates Homeowners 
Association, and the land use of Tract “B” changed from “Fire Station” to “Open Space\Tot Lot 
Park”, as denoted in Exhibit “A”; and that the assignment of ownership of Tract “F” is changed 
from the City of Apopka to the Orchid Estates Homeowners Association and its use changed from 
“Open Space” to “Open Space\Recreation Area”, as provided in Exhibit “B”.  
  
 SECTION II.  Except for the amendments described in Section I, all other zoning and 
development standards set forth in Ordinance 2170 and its associated Master Plan\Preliminary 
Development Plan remain in effect and applicable to the property described in Exhibit “A”. 
 
 Section III.  That this amendment to Ordinance No. 2170 is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, to include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.   

165



ORDINANCE NO. 2519 

PAGE 2 

 

 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption.  
 
 

                       

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR TRANSMITTAL HEARING:  August 26, 2016  
         October 7, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
October 19, 2016 

 
 
 
Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

166



ORDINANCE NO. 2519 

PAGE 3 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 

(Information purposes: Parcel Nos.: 18-20-28-0000-00-055, 18-20-28-0000-00-059, and portion of 18-20-28-0000-00-117.) 

167



168



169



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2520 – Second Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment - Legislative   Kyle 
Wilkes 

  

170



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 19, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2520 
  
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2520 – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

– EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2520 – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC, 

FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 10 AC)) TO “CITY” MIXED USE; (PARCEL 

I.D. NO. 19-21-28-0000-00-011). 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Equity Waters Edge, LLC – David Shapiro 
 
LOCATION:  1850 S. Binion Road 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
ZONING DESIGNATION: “City” Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) (Note: this Future Land Use Map 

amendment request is being processed along with a request to change the 
Zoning Map designation from “County”A-1 to “City” Mixed-EC [Mixed 
Use]) 

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: City has received a Preliminary Development Plan for a single family 

residential development. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    5.6 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:   EXISTING: 1 dwelling units 
     PROPOSED: Residential Development 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

171



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 

Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future land 

use designation of Mixed Use to the property.  

 

The subject property has been annexed into the City of Apopka. The annexation occurred on June 5, 2013, 

through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2303.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is 

being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres 

are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State 

planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Mixed Use is compatible with the designations 

assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 5.6 acres.   

 

The parcel owner – Equity Waters Edge, LLC – also owns abutting parcels to the south, combining these 

for a future development site of approximately 75 acres.   A Preliminary Development Plan is under review 

by the City’s Development Review Committee for a single family residential community 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Mixed Use Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Mixed Use Zoning. Site 

development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No more than nine residential homes will be constructed on the 5.6 

acre site.  Pursuant to the School Planning Agreement, nine or less residential units is considered a 

deminimus impact on schools.  Therefore, this 5.6 acre site is exempt from School Capacity Enhancement 

review.  However, school concurrency review will occur at the time of a preliminary or final development 

plan. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 12, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 13, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

October 5, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

October 19, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

October 7, 2016 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

  

172



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

  

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change in 

Future Land Use from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 ac) to “City” Mixed Use for the property owned by Equity 

Waters Edge, LLC and located at 1850 S. Binion Road. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on September 13, 2016, found that the proposed Small Scale 

Future Land Use Amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

recommended adoption of the Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment from “County” Rural (1 du/ 10 

ac) to “City” Mixed Use for the property owned by Equity Waters Edge, LLC and located at 1850 S. Binion 

Road. 

 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2520 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 19, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2520. 
 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

173



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

 
I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Green House 

East (City) Mixed Use  A-1(ZIP) Vacant \Binion Road 

South (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Vacant 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-2 SJRWMD\conservation 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with the 
development of mixed uses.  The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (S. Binion Rd.) 
and has access to Harmon Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Redevelopment:   Policy 3.13. No non-conforming structure shall be substantially expanded. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property fronts S. Binion Rd.  The vegetative 
communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand, Canova sand, and Tavares sand; and 
no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 0-12 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.r. 
Mixed-Use Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the Property is Mixed Use.  Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 
 

174



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (County designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2.659 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): 15 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 223 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment may negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within the 
City of Apopka Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    

 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;   81 GPD/Capita; 
 81 GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  53,054  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  210  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  66,427  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes           

 
 

 

175



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None  
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  12  lbs./person/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  1380  lbs./day/1000 sf 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 

Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 25 hour design storm  
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009  AC 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.669  AC 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
  176



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 

 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC   

5.6 +/- acres  
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit/ac 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 15 dwelling unit/ac 
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” Mixed-EC 

Parcel ID #: 19-21-28-0000-00-011 
 

VICINITY MAP

 

 
 
 177



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 

 
  

178



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

179



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

180



ORDINANCE NO. 2520 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/ 
10 AC) TO “CITY” MIXED USE, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 1850 S. BINION RD., COMPRISING 5.6 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS, AND OWNED BY EQUITY WATERS EDGE LLC; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2500 on July 20, 2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2500, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac) to “City” Mixed Use (N/A DU/AC), for 
certain real property located at 1850 S. Binion Rd., comprising 5.6 acres more or less, (Parcel No. 
19-21-28-0000-00-011); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 
 
 

181



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2520 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2016. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
October 5, 2016 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
October 19, 2016 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: August 26, 2016 

      October 7, 2016 

 

182



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC   

1850 S. Binion Rd. 
5.6 +/- acres  

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling unit 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development:  15 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Parcel ID #: 19-21-28-0000-00-011 

 

183



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2521 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial     Kyle 
Wilkes  

  

184



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 19, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2521 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2521 – CHANGE OF ZONING – EQUITY WATERS 

EDGE, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2521 – 

CHANGE OF ZONING – EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC, FROM 

“COUNTY” A-1 (RURAL) TO “CITY” MIXED EC (MIXED USE); (PARCEL 

I.D. NO. 19-21-28-0000-00-011). 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Equity Waters Edge, LLC – David Shapiro 
 
LOCATION: 1850 S. Binion Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Mixed Use (NOTE: This change of zoning application is being processed in 

conjunction with a small scale FLUM amendment requesting Mixed Use.)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: City has received a Preliminary Development Plan for a single family 

residential development. 
 
TRACT SIZE:   5.6 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 dwelling units 

PROPOSED: single family residential development consistent with the 
Mixed-EC zoning district 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

185



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” Future 
Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future 
land use designation of Mixed Use to the property.  
 
Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) to the 

property, consistent with the proposed Mixed Use future land use designation. The parcel owner – Equity 

Waters Edge, LLC – also owns abutting parcels to the south, combining these for a future development 

site of approximately 75 acres.   A Preliminary Development Plan is under review by the City’s 

Development Review Committee for a single family residential community 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 
classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 
owner is requesting the Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the 
property to have the potential to be single family residential. The subject property abuts nurseries along S. 
Binion Rd. that have a zoning of Mixed-EC.  City staff supports this change of zoning request due to the 
Ocoee Apopka Road Small Area Study. This change of zoning application is being processed in 
conjunction with a small scale future land use amendment for Mixed Use.  The proposed use is consistent 
with the proposed future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 
surrounding zoning and uses.      
  
The change of zoning application covers approximately 5.6 acres.  
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Mixed Use Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed Mixed Use Zoning. 

Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No more than nine residential homes will be constructed on the 5.6 

acre site.  Pursuant to the School Planning Agreement, nine or less residential units is considered a 

deminimus impact on schools.  Therefore, this 5.6 acre site is exempt from School Capacity Enhancement 

review.  However, school concurrency review will occur at the time of a preliminary or final development 

plan. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 12, 2016. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 13, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

October 5, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

October 19, 2016 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 26, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

October 7, 2016 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad  

186



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 

in zoning from County A-1(Agriculture) to Mixed-EC (Mixed Use)  for the property owned by Equity 

Waters Edge, LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on September 13, 2016, found that the proposed Change of 

Zoning consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended 

adoption of the Change of Zoning from “County” A-1(Agriculture) to “City” Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) for 

the property owned by Equity Waters Edge, LLC and located at 1850 S. Binion Road. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2521 

and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 19, 2016. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2521. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

187



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Green House 

East (City) Mixed Use  A-1(ZIP) Vacant  

South (City) Mixed Use  Mixed-EC Vacant 

West (County) Rural/Agricultural (1 du/ 10 ac) A-2 SJRWMD property\conservation 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (S. 

Binion Rd.) and has access to Harmon Rd.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) zoning is consistent with the 

City’s Mixed Use (15 DU/AC) Future Land Use designation and with 

the character of the surrounding area. The Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) 

zoning classification is one of the acceptable zoning categories 

allowed within the proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use 

Designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation.   
MIXED USE-EC DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Floor Area Ratio (%): 25 min. 100 max. 

Minimum Site Area: N/A 

Minimum Lot Width Varies; based on master plan 

Setbacks: Front: 15 ft. (From property line) 

 Rear: 10 ft.  

 Side: 0 ft. 

 Corner 10 ft.  

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels do meet 
code requirements for the Mixed-EC (Mixed Use) district. 
 

BUFFERYARD   

REQUIREMENTS: 

 Buffer yards shall be consistent with the zoning district for the 

proposed use, unless otherwise noted herein. For example, single-

family developments shall follow the buffer requirements of the 

single-family zoning districts, commercial uses shall follow the 

buffering of the applicable commercial zoning district, etc. Buffers 

may be waived or varied in mixed-use buildings and projects when 

compatible uses and appropriate building/parking relationships are 

demonstrated and strong pedestrian connectivity and well-planned 

vehicular connectivity are provided. 

 

188



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-Family detached residential development; duplex; multi-

family residential; commercial, office, industrial, and institutional 

uses subject to the intensities,  development standards, and land use 

mix criteria set forth of the Mixed-EC zoning district. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

189



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC   

Property Owner 
5.6 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural/Agricultural (1 du/10 ac) 

To: “City” Mixed Use  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County”A-1 
To: “City” Mixed-EC  

Parcel ID #s:   19-21-28-0000-00-011 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 

Subject 

Property 

190



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 

 

 

191



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

192



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 
EQUITY WATERS EDGE, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

193



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2521 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” MIXED-EC FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1850 S. BINION RD., COMPRISING 5.6 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY EQUITY WATERS EDGE LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Mixed-EC (Employment Center) (up to 15 du/ac) zoning has been found 
to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Mixed-EC (Employment Center) (up to 15 du/ac), as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code.  
 
 Legal Description: South 147.85 feet of north 563.64 feet of northwest 1/4 of northeast 1/4 west of 
road and south 147.85 feet of north 563.64 feet gov lot 1 (AKA the south 147.85 feet of north 563.64 feet 
of east 1187.22feet of northeast 1/4 of northwest/4) of Section 19-21-28. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parcel I.D.: 19-21-28-0000-00-011 

Contains: 5.6 +/- Acres 

  

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

194



ORDINANCE NO. 2521 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date of adoption of Ordinance 

No. 2520. 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: August 26, 2016 

    October 7, 2016  

READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
October 19, 2016 

195



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2522 – Second Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial  Rogers Beckett 
  

196



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 19 , 2016 

X  PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

X  OTHER: Vacate   Utility Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2522 

    Survey/Legal Description 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2522   - COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - 

VACATING A PORTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

REQUEST:  SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2522 – 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATING AN ALLEYWAY 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
APPLICANT:              Community Health Centers, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:              South of East 6th St., west of South Highland Ave and north of East 7th St. 
 
LAND USE:              Right of Way 
 
ZONING:   Right of Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Unimproved Alleyway 
 
AREA TO  
BE VACATED:     0.203 +/- Acre (8,850 +/- Sq. Ft.) 
      
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Office PO/I - R-3 Church/ SFR (3) 
East - City Right of Way ROW Right of Way 

South - City Office PO/I – R-3 Office Building/ SFR (3) 
West - City Office PO/I West Orange Trail 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

 

 197



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant is seeking to vacate a 15’ X 590’ section of unimproved 

alleyway located south of East 6th Street, west of South Highland Avenue and north of East 7th Street.  The 

portion of the right-of-way that will be vacated is described in the legal description.  The vacation of this 

section of alleyway is being requested to accommodate redevelopment of site.  Vacating this section of the 

alleyway will not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

Our Public Services department, including DRC, has evaluated the site and has agreed to the vacate request. 

Additionally, all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant and have provided the letters 

received from each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 5, 2016 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

October 19, 2016 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 16, 2016 - Public Hearing Notice 

October 7, 2016 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate a section of alleyway 
as described in the legal description. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2522 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 19, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2522. 
 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 198



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 

Community Health Centers, Inc. 
Proposed Vacate of Alleyway 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

                               

 
  Vacate Area 
   
    

199



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 4 

  

                          200



201



202



203



204



205



ORDINANCE NO. 2522 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 
PORTION OF RIGHT OF WAY(ALLEYWAY); LOCATED SOUTH OF 
EAST 6TH  STREET AND WEST OF SOUTH HIGHLAND AVENUE; IN 
SECTION 09, TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by Community Health Centers, Inc., to vacate, abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim 
a section of alleyway, as shown in Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Century Link (f/k/a Embarq), Bright House Network (f/k/a Time Warner 
Cable), Duke Energy (f/k/a Progress Energy), and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no 
objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

That 15.00’ alleyway adjoining the North lot lines of lots 110 through and including 

121 and adjoining the South lot lines of Lots 98 through and including 109 Block 

“F” Champney’s portion of Apopka, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 

Plat Book A, at Page 87 and 109, of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida; 

more fully described as follows:  

 

Begin at the Northwest corner of said lot 110, thence run North 90 degrees 00 

minutes 00 seconds east, along said North line of lots 110 thru lot 121, 590.50 feet 

to the Northeast corner of Lot 121, said point also being on the Westerly right of 

way line for S. Highland Avenue; Thence run North 03 degrees 26 minutes 01 

seconds west, along said westerly right of way line 15.03 feet to the Southeast 

corner of said lot 98; thence run north 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, 

along the South line of said lots 98 thru lot 109, 589.60 feet to the Southwest corner 

of said lot 109, said point also being on the Easterly right of way line to the West 

Orange Trail; thence run south 00 degrees 00 minutes and 00 seconds East along 

said Easterly right of way, 15.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.   

 

CONTAINING: 8,850 SQUARE FEET, (0.203 ACRE) MORE OR LESS 
 

 
206



ORDINANCE NO.  2522 

PAGE 2 

 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 

            Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 

this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 

or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 

part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  October 19, 2016 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  September 16, 2016 
        October 7, 2016 
         
 

 

 

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Vacate\Community Health Centers 2016– Ordinance-2522  

 

207



ORDINANCE NO: 2522 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

208



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2523 – Second Reading – Vacate – Right-of-Way - Quasi-Judicial  Rogers Beckett 
  

209



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: October 19 , 2016 

X  PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

X  OTHER: Vacate   Utility Letters 

    Ordinance No. 2523 

    Survey/Legal Description 
  
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO.  2523  - GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND 

MAUDEHELEN HOMEOWNER’S ASSOCIATION, INC. - VACATING A 
PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

REQUEST:  SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2523 - GK 

MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN HOMEOWNER’S 

ASSOCIATION, INC. - VACATING A PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
APPLICANT:              GK Maudehelen, LLLP and Maudehelen Homeowner’s Association, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:              Johns Road 
 
LAND USE:              Right of Way 
 
ZONING:   Right of Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Unimproved Right of Way 
 
AREA TO  
BE VACATED:     1.22 +/- Acres (53,129 +/- Sq. Ft.) 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Land Use Zoning Present Use 
North - City Residential Low R-2 Residential Subdivision 
East - City Residential Low       R-2 Residential Subdivision 

South - County Rural A-1 SFR (2) 
South - City Residential Low R-2 Vacant Land 
West - City Right of Way (Binion Road) ROW Vacant Land 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 210



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN H.O.A. INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant is seeking to vacate a 60’ x 988’ portion of unimproved 

Johns Road right-of-way located east of Binion Road and south of Beardsley Drive.  The portion of the 

right-of-way that will be vacated is described in the legal description.  The vacation of this portion of the 

right of way is being requested to accommodate a proposed residential development.  Vacating this portion 

of the road right-of-way will not affect any abutting property owners. 

 

Our Public Services department has evaluated the site and has agreed to the vacate request. Additionally, 

all local utility providers have been contacted by the applicant and have provided the letters received from 

each utility provider indicating no objection to this vacate request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 5, 2016 - City Council - 1st Reading (1:30 p.m.) 

October 19, 2016 - City Council - 2nd Reading (7:00 p.m.) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 16, 2016 - Public Hearing Notice 

October 7, 2016 - Ordinance Heading Ad 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the request to vacate a portion of Johns 
Road right-of-way as described in the legal description. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on October 5, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2523 
and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on October 19, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2523. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
  

211



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN H.O.A. INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 3 

 

GK Maudehelen, LLLP and Maudehelen Homeowner’s Association, Inc. 
Proposed Vacate of Johns Road Right-Of-Way 

 

JOHNS ROAD 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
                                                                                                                                                                           

 
  Vacate Area 
   
    

212



CITY COUNCIL – OCTOBER 19, 2016 

GK MAUDEHELEN, LLLP AND MAUDEHELEN H.O.A. INC. - VACATE 

PAGE 4 

  

213



214



215



216



217



218



ORDINANCE NO. 2523 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO VACATE A 
PORTION OF JOHNS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY; LOCATED EAST OF 
BINION ROAD AND SOUTH OF BEARDSLEY DRIVE; IN SECTION 07, 
TOWNSHIP 21, RANGE 28 OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR 
SEVERABILITY, FOR CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, Section 336.10, a Petition has been 
filed by GK Maudehelen, LLLP and Maudehelen Homeowner’s Association Inc., to vacate, 
abandon, discontinue, renounce and disclaim a portion of Johns Road, as shown in Exhibit “A”; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Century Link (f/k/a Embarq), Bright House Network (f/k/a Time Warner 
Cable), Duke Energy (f/k/a Progress Energy), and Lake Apopka Natural Gas District have no 
objection to the abandonment of a portion of the existing utility easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that under the proposed circumstances there 
exists no public need for this existing easement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after public notice in accordance with Florida Statute 336.10, the City 
Council has determined that it is not contrary to public interest to vacate and abandon said existing 
easement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  That the following lands, and graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit “A,” 
shall be officially closed, discontinued, and vacated: 
 
 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

A portion of Johns Road, as recorded in Deed Book 971, pages 41 and 42 of the 
Public Records of Orange County, Florida, situated in Section 7, Township 21 
South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, being more particulary described 
as follows: Beginning at a point of intersection of the Southerly right of way line 
of Johns Road, as recorded in Deed Book 971, Page 42 of the Public Records of 
Orange County, Florida, with the East line of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ 
of Section 7, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County Florida; thence 
run North 89°18’03” West, along said Southerly right of way line of Johns Road, 
for a distance of 758.88 feet to the Easterly line of the West 560.00 feet of the said 
Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of the Section 7; thence departing said Southerly 
right of way line, run North 00°07’00” East, along said Easterly line, for a distance 
of 30.00 feet to a point on the North line of the aforesaid Southwest ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 7; thence departing said East line, run North 89°18’03” 
West, along said North line, for a distance of 275.61 feet to a point on the 
Southeasterly right of way line of Binion Road, as recorded in State Road Book, 1, 
Page 40 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida, said point also being a 
point on a curve, concave Southeasterly, having a radius of 532.96 feet, a chord 
bearing of North 57°35’33” East and a chord distance of 54.92 feet; thence 
departing said North line, run Northeasterly along the arc of said curve through a 
central angle of 5°54’26” for an arc distance of 54.94 feet to a point on the Northerly 
right of way line of said Johns Road, as recorded in Deed Book 971, Page 41 of the 

219



ORDINANCE NO.  2523 

PAGE 2 

 
aforesaid Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thencedeparting said 
Southeasterly right of way line of Binion Road, run South 89°18’03” East, along 
said Northerly right of way line, for a distance of 988.04 feet to a point on the East 
line of the Northwest ¼ of Southeast ¼ of said Section 7; thence departing said 
Northerly right of way line, run South 00°00’39” East, along the East line of the 
Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼, and the East line of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Southeast ¼ of Section 7, for a distance of 60.00 feet to the Point of Beginning.  
 
Containing: 53,128 square feet, or 1.22 acres, more or less.  

 
 Section II.  NOTICE.  That notice of the adoption of this Ordinance be published and the 
Ordinance be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Orange County, Florida, and duly 
recorded among the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
            Section III. SEVERABILITY. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate 
or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or 
part of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section IV.  CONFLICT. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section V.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of 
adoption. 
 
      READ FIRST TIME:  October 5, 2016 
 
      READ SECOND TIME 
      AND ADOPTED:  October 19, 2016 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  September 16, 2016 
        October 7, 2016 
     
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Vacate\GK Maudehelen, LLLP 2016– Ordinance-2523  

220



ORDINANCE NO.  2523 

PAGE 2 

 
ORDINANCE NO: 2523 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

221



ORDINANCE NO.  2523 

PAGE 2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

222



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Resolution 2016-32 – Accept a donation of right-of-way along Marden Rd. from the Central Florida Expressway. Glenn A. 
Irby 

  

223



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  October 19, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:     Administration       

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   Resolution 2016-32     

 X   OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: DEDICATION TO THE CITY OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG MARDEN ROAD  
 

REQUEST: ACCEPT THE DONATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG MARDEN ROAD BY 

ACCEPTANCE OF THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION 
  
SUMMARY:   
 

MMI Development has approached the city about the possibility of constructing two (2) traffic circles 

(roundabouts) on Marden Road.  One will be situated south of the S.R. 414 overpass and the second will be 

constructed just north of the S.R. 414 overpass.  Both will connect the half interchange to be constructed 

by MMI to Marden Road.  The one to the south of the S.R. 414 overpass will also connect the Harmon 

Road extension from Ocoee Apopka Road. 

 

On August 23, 2016 the City Council approved the following resolutions to dedicate lands necessary to 

establish needed rights-of-way along Marden Road:  Resolution 2016-21 to accept land from Centex 

Homes, Resolution 2016-22 to accept land from Emerson Point Phase II, LLC, and Resolution 2016-23 to 

accept land from Emerson Point Assoc.  The attached resolution accepting land for right of way from the 

Central Florida Expressway Authority was not included with the above mentioned donations due to 

additional time needed to prepare the deed.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  
 

No funding is necessary for the city to accept the dedication of land from the Central Florida Expressway 

Authority.      
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
 

Approval of Resolution 2016-32.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

224



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-32 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING A QUIT CLAIM 

DEED FROM CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY 

AUTHORITY FOR REAL PROPERTY; DIRECTING THE 

CITY CLERK OR DESIGNEE TO RECORD THE 

EXECUTED DEED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

ORANGE COUNTY, AND PAY ALL FEES NECESSARY 

TO EFFECTUATE SUCH RECORDATION; PROVIDING 

SEVERABLIITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka has determined it is in the best 

interests of the City and its citizens to accept a Quitclaim Deed from Central Florida Expressway 

(“CFX”) for real property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council intends that the donated property will be used for the benefit 

of the public to construct a roundabout on Marden Ridge Road. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Acceptance and Recordation of Deed.  The City Council hereby accepts the 

Quitclaim Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and directs the City Clerk or designee to record the 

fully executed Quitclaim Deed in the Public Records of Orange County and to pay all costs of 

recording the Deed. 

 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is 

held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, that holding in no 

way shall affect the remaining portions of this resolution. 

  

 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND RESOLVED this 19th day of October, 2016, by the City Council of the 

City of Apopka, Florida.  

APPROVED: 

 

 

        _________________________________ 

                                                            Joe Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Thank you letter from Wine for Us for the Water For People proclamation.  
  

234



235


	Top
	1. 10-19-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes August 23, 2016
	08-23-16 Budget WS.pdf

	2. 10-19-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes 9/14/16
	09-14-2016 TRIM.pdf

	3. 10-19-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes 9/28/16
	09-28-2016 TRIM.pdf

	4. 10-19-16 - CC - Approval of Minutes October 5, 2016
	10-05-16 Draft.pdf

	1. 10-19-16 - CC - Presentations - FD Combat Challenge
	1. 10-19-16 - CC - Consent Agenda -DISBURSEMENT
	SEPT 2016 DISBURSEMENTS.pdf

	2. 10-19-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS 2016-19 Bid Award Ocoee Apopka RWM Extension
	PS - Reclaim Water Service Main Ext  Ocoee-Apopka Rd.pdf

	3. 10-19-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - New Fire Engine
	2nd Engine 5 Staff Report1.docx

	4. 10-19-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Life Support and Rescue Vehicle
	EMS Squad 5 Staff Report.docx

	5. 10-19-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - CMAR
	Station 5 CMAR Ranking Staff Report.docx
	Evalutaion Ranking Bid Summary  2016-17.pdf

	1. 10-19-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2519 - 2nd Rd - Master Plan Amendment
	1 Orchid Estates - PUD Amend - CC 10-19-16.pdf
	2 Ord 2519 Orchid Estates PUD Amendment.pdf
	3 Exhibit B Orched Estates Amended PUD Master Plan.pdf

	2. 10-19-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2520 - 2nd Rd - FLU - Equity Waters Edge LLC
	1 Equity Waters Edge, LLC - 1850 S Binion Rd - FLU - CC 10-19-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2520  - Equity Waters Edge LLC - Binion Rd - FLU.pdf

	3. 10-19-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2521 - 2nd Rd - Zoning - Equity Waters Edge LLC
	1 Equity Waters Edge, LLC - 1850 S Binion Rd - ZON - CC 10-19-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord  - Equity Waters Edge LLC ZON.pdf

	4. 10-19-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2522 - 2nd Rd - Vacate
	1 Community Health Centers, Inc. - Vacate CC 10-19-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2522 - Utility Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2522 - Community Health Centers  - Vacate - Alleyway.pdf

	5. 10-19-16 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2523 - 2nd Rd - Vacate
	1 GK Maudehelen- HOA - Vacate CC 10-19-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2523 Utility Letters.pdf
	3 Ord 2523 - GK Maudehelen-HOA  - Vacate - Johns Road.pdf

	6. 10-19-16 - CC - Resolution 2016-32 - CFX Right-Of-Way donation
	Glenn - Marden Road CFX ROW Dedication Staff Report.pdf
	Glenn - Marden Road Resolution 2016-32- CFX DEED.pdf
	Glenn - Marden Raod CFX ROW Quit Claim Deed.pdf

	1. 10-19-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Water for People Letter
	Glenn - Wine for Us Letter 2016 (2).pdf

	Bottom

